IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL

BIRCUIT, IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA, |

Plaintiff, Case No.:
VS,
SOPHIA MANUEL, A ONSO BALDONADO,
QUALITY STAFFING RVICES CORPORATION,
DAR WORKFORCE SLUTIONS USA, INC.,

BOCA WOODS COURTRY CLUB ASSOCIATION, INC. and

JERTY OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION, INC.

: 5% COMPLAINT.

Plaintiff, OFFCE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS, STATE

OF FLORIDA (hereini er referred to as "Plaintiff”), sues Defendants, SOPHIA MANUEL and
ALFONSO BALDONA]

QUALITY SI'AFFING;:
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SOLUTIONS USA, ING,, a Florida corporation (hereinafter referred to as DAR), and BOCA
WOODS COUNTRY CUB ASSOCIATION, INC. and BOCA WOODS PROPERTY OWNERS’

ASSOCIATION, INC,, §oth Florida corporations (hereinafter jointly referred to as Boca Woods

2

ﬁl
Country Club). i
! :
ai JURISDICTION
)
i -
1. This dgan action for damages and injurctive relief, brought pursuant to Florida's

Deceptive and UhfalqiTrade Practices Act, Chapter 501, Part II, Florida Statutes (2007).

;:

2. This dnurt has jurisdiction pursuant to the provisions of said statute.
| “

3. Plamtiff is an enforcing authontv of Florida's Deceptme and Unfair Trade
g

Practices Act as de%]ed in Chapter 501, Part I, Flcrida Statutes, and is authorized to seek
ﬁs

damages, m;unctwe gmd other statutory relief pursuart to this part.

l
1
5&

4. The sf; tutory vloiatmns alleged herein occurred in or affected more than one

judicial circuit in thé%State of Florida. Venue is proger in the Fiﬁeenth Judicial Circuit as the
3.
principal place of bu?ﬁness of the Defendant entities is Palm Beach County, Florida.

!L

S Plamt{ff has conducted an investigation, and the head of the enforcing authority,

Attorney General Brﬁ McCollum has determined that an enforcement action serves the public

.t'

mterest A copy oﬁnsald determination was attached and incorporated herein as Plamtnffs

Exhibit A to the ong:i'al Complaint and is incorporated herein by reference.
43 :
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6. Defenﬁants, at all times material hereto, provided goods or services as defined
el

;
within Section 501.2&'!3[8), Florida Statutes (2007).
ki 2
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7 Defendants, at all times material hereto, solicited consumers within the

definitions of Sectiot 501.203(7), Florida Statutes (2007).

3. Defengtants, at all times material hereto, were engaged in a trade or commerce

within the definition}' f Section 501.203(8), Florida Statutes (2007).
DEFENDANTS

9. Defenlants Sephia Manue! and Alfonso Baldonado are adults over the age of
twenty one, were at §ll times material owners, officers and/or directors of Defendant Quality

and reside in Boca R: ion, Palm Beach County, Florida.

10. Defen fant Quality is a Florida for-profit corporation, with a principal place of

business in Boca Ratgn, Palm Beach County, Florida.

11.  Atalli _. es material, Defendants Sophia Manuel and Alfonso Baldonado knew of

and representatives ¢

deceptive and/or progibi

12 Defenint DAR is a Florida for-profit corporation, with a prmc:pal place of

business in Miami, D%e County, Florida.
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COUNT |
DECEPTIVE AND UNFAIR TRADE PRACTICES

CHAPTER 501, PART Il FLORIDA STATUTES

14. Plaint:
fully set forth herein_';_

adopts, incorporates herein and re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 13 as if
er.

15. Chap 501.204(1), Florida Statutes, declares that unfair or deceptive acts or

practices in the con_':__ of any trade or commerce are unlawful,

16. Comy E ncing on a date unknown, but at least subseguent to June 15, 2007, the

Defendants engagedn various willful deceptive and unfair trade practices, as set out further

herein, in violation 0! habter 501, Part i, Florida Statutes (2_00?).

i7. Com ncing on a date unknown, but at least subsequent to June 15, 2007, the

Defendants engaged §n a systematic pattern of conduct desig'ned and intended to induce
consumer business :‘fo purchase their services via a series of false and fraudulent

representations. %
1

It

o

18. Onor ﬁbout June 15, 2007, Defendants Manuel, Baldonado and Quality obtained

from Boca Woods Cogintry Club a letter dated June 15, 2007 that stated that Defendants

T e Do e
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Manuel, Baldonado d Quality were “authorized by Boca Woods Country Club to employ wait

staff and busboys fo:_ ervice at this facility.”

19. Ona te unknown but subsequent to lanuary 1, 2006 Defendants Manuel,

Baldonado and Qual .f'_.; filed an 1-129 petition for nonirmmigrant visas with the Department of
Homeland Security, S Citizenship and immigration Services (USCIS). On or about September
6, 2007, USCIS grantt to Defendants Manuel, Baldonado and Quality H2B visas for fifty

unnamed workers, \_r%id from October 1, 2007 to July 1, 2008.

200 Ona _ te unknown but subsequent to January 1, 2006, Defendants Manuel,

Baldonado and O.ual“: solicited or otherwise received or obtained applicants from the Republic

of the Philippines foi% dvertised jobs at Boca Woods Country Club.

21.  Defe ants Manuel, Baldonado, Quality and DAR or their agents orally

represented and/or dfherwise stated to the aforesaid Filipino applicants that the location and
work conditions of tHé advertised jobs was at Boca Woods Country Club for 35 hours per week
-of labor as waiters aitresses at $6.67 per _hbur and/or $1400.00 per month plus free

housing and transpo ’_ation, The foregoing representations were memorialized in executed

Mendoza; d} Abner A justin; e) Jofer Trinos; f) Jayson Octavo; g) Christopher Advincula;
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h) Radito Diocera; i) ': [tair Llacuna; j) Cheryl Aquino; k) Ferdinand Coronado; 1) Jay laramillo;

:
and m) Raul Ambat. E,

23.  Commiencing on a date unknown but subsequent to june 15, 2007, each of the

ividuals submitted a nonimmigrant visa application to the Dep_aitment of

1

State for an H2B visal

24.  Said n immigrant visa applications listed Manuel and Quality as the employer

in the United States fr said applicants and stated that the applications were prepared' by

Placewell Internation i Services Corporation, an agency duly licensed by the Philippine

Overseas Employme : Administration of the Philippine Government to recruit workers for

overseas employmen , on behalf of its principals, Sophia Manuel and Quality Staffing Services

Corporation. E
i

25. In confianction with sald nonimmigrant visa applications, Defendants Manuel,

- Baldonado and Qualigy submitted to the American Embassy in the Philippines a) a letter dated

September 19, 2007 %ting 50 workers that said Defendants Manuel, Baldonado and Quality

¥

had recruited to work iat Boca Woods Country Club, b) the aforesaid letter dated June 15, 2007

from Boca Woods Cdéﬁtry Club and c) each applicant’s employment contract with Defendants

'Manuel, Baldonado ld Quality listing the job location and conditions as Boca Woods Country

I

Club for 35 hours per:j veek at $6.67 per hour plus free housing and transportation.

!

26.  In conifinction with said nonimmigrant visa applications, Defendants Manuel,

Baldonado and Quali"_ also submitted to the American Embassy in the Philippines a “Guarantee

6



Letter” from Place I International Services Corporation “assum{ing] full responsibilities {sic)

over the employm of the ... foreign workers” recruited by Placewell International Services

Corporation for Deff'dants Manuel, Baldonado and Quality.

employer.

28.  The P@lippine Overseas Employment Administration of the Philippine
Government {POEA}'T the agency that manages the migration of Filipino workers. The
recruitment of Filipi workers by foreign employers is required to be done through POEA-

licensed private agengies.

29. Place International Services Corporation is a POEA-licensed private agency

recruiting Filipino wogkers for overseas employers.

employment. it

i : . — .
31 Inregakd to the thirteen above listed Filipino citizens, Placewell international
Services Corporation ¢ bmitted, or caused to be submitted, documentation to POEA for said

Filipino citizens that uﬁas not consistent with the documentation that Defendants Manuel,
&
Baldonado and Quaiil# submitted to the American Embassy.
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Inc.

33. nts Manuel, Baldonado and Quality submitted to the American Embassy

an employment con ct listing Defendants Manuel, Baldonado and Quality as employer and
the job location and gpnditions as Baca Woods Country Club for 35 hours per week at $6.67 per

hour plus free housiré and transportation.

34. In con' rast, the employment contract for each Filipino citizen and the certificate

3S. In add _io'n, the employment contracts of the aforesaid Filipino citizens with

Defendant DAR subnlitted by Placewell International Services Corporation to POEA listed the

job lacation as merel :”Florida, USA” which violates the provisions of 8 CFR §214.2(h).

36.  Said eghployment contracts of the Filipino citizens with Defendant DAR
submitted by Placewél International Services Corporation to POEA also listed the conditions of

employment as S1409 per month for 8 hour workdays as base salary plus $10 per hour for

5:

overtime plus free tr%hsportatlon from/to the Philippines, free accommodations, and

emergency medical c.gre
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37.  The efpployment contracts of the Filipino citizens with Defendant DAR submitted

by Placewell internatjonal Services Corporation to POEA were consistent with the form of POEA

contract for Oversea::workers. The employment contracts of the Filipino citizens with

,faidonado and Quality do not comply with the POEA form of contract for

38. As 3 r{ ult of the foregoing submittals by Placewell International Services

Corporation, the POE A issued exit clearances for said Filipino citizens valid for exit from the

Philippines until Dece ber 30, 2007 and listing the principal, i.e. emplover, as Defendant DAR.

39. Acco'r' _.ng_to USCIS regulation, 8 CFR 214.2(h), an employment agent petitioning
for H2B visas as an el _ployer ‘must guarantee the wages and other terms and conditions of

employment by con%rctual agreement ... and must also provide an itinerary of def“ nite

'z
3

employment ...”

40. Acco . ng to USCIS regulation, 8 CFR 214.2(h), if an employee will perform

_'g
i
g
a ]
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conduct designed angil intended to induce consumers to purchase their services via a series of

false and fraudulent iepresentations.

42. Despife contractual terms providing free transportation from the origin of the

Filipino workers in tliL Republic of the Philippines to the location of employment, each Filipino

e

sired by the Defendants to purchase and pay for airline transportation to

iz e

- worker has been reg

and from Florida. ‘?

§

43, UponErrwa! in Florida during October and November of 2007, the aforesaid
g
o

thirteen Filipino worlgers discovered that they would not be working at Boca Woods Country

Club despite the terr of Defendant Quality’s contract and the oral representations made to

said Filipino workers§

44.  Despite the terms of Defendant Quality’s contract and the oral representations

made to said Filipinda?ubrkers, the aforesaid thirteen Filipino workers have not worked at Boca
: :
Woods Country Clubﬁgt any time since their arrival in Florida.




47. Desp' the terms of Defendant Quality’s contract and the terms of Defendant

_ B oral representations made to said Filipino workers, the aforesaid
:ers since their arrival in Florida have received substantially less than the
# wages required by 8 CFR 214.2(h).

@heir arrival in Florida, the Filipino passports and return airline tickets of

' Filipino workers have been confiscated by Defendants Manuel,

' , thereby causing said workers to be indentured.

from his/her employiy

derhénded, thereby using said workers to be indentured.

50. - Each ; the aforesaid thirteen Filipino workers paid Defendants Manuel,

Baldonado and Quaf ' and/or Defendant DAR, or their agent, thousands of dollars in fees in
exchange for the op{ rtunity to work, under H2B visas, pursuant to the terms of the contracts
: ith Defendants Manuel, Baldonado and Quality and Defendant DAR and

ins made to said Filipino workers.

11




COURNT Il

| adopts, incorporates herein and re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 53 as if

3
pay the aforesald thvi%een Filipino workers the prescribed minimum wage for all hours worked

at the direction and. ?ntml of said Defendants Manuel, Baldonado and Quality, in violation of




I

WHEREFORE, ..3; laintiff requests this court to enter the following Orders:

1. Grant per ) anent injunctions against Defendants, their officers, agents, servants,

employees, attorneys and those persons in active concert or participation with Defendants who

receive actual notlcibf this injunction, prohibiting such persons from doing the following acts:

a. Vlolzikg the prowsmns of Chapter 501, Part li, Florida Statutes {2007};

ﬂ?
b

b. Engaﬁng in any business activity or operatlons offering, soliciting, prowdmg ar

otherwise dealing in ?r related to the employment of temporary workers under the provisions

i

of 8USC. § 1101(a)§ﬁ5)(ﬁ ) and 8 CFR 214.2(h) .

SRR eatyRy

2. Awar ctual damages to all consumers who are shown to have been injured in
i

this action, pursuantito Section 501.206 (1) (), Florida Statutes (2007).

\"

3. Asses§ 'against Defendants herein civil penalties in the amount of Ten Thousand
a)
i

Dollars ($10,000.00) !br each act or practice found to be in violation of Chapter 501, Part I,

Flonda Statutes (200%}

;r's.r

4. Order$‘ne dissolution of QUALITY STAFFING SERVICES CORPORATION and DAR
o

WORKFORCE sowﬁifaws USA, INC. .

§| :
7!
5. Awarcﬁ;:ireasonable attorneys fees pursuant to F.S. 501.2075.

6. Grant iiemporary relief pursuant to F.S. 501.207.
g 13
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Wai posting of any bond by Plaintiff in this action.

e Ay TR

Grantuch other relief as this Honorable Court deems just and proper.

i

E

E Respectfully Submitted
3

i _

i BILL McCOLLUM

§§ Attorney General

i _ _

E By: Fulvio Joseph Gentili
] ~

S e T L

Assistr;nt Attoﬁey G’eneral/
Fla. Bar. No. 0037493

L
i Office of the Attorney General
- Department of Legal Affairs
gi 110 S.E. 6th Street, Tenth Floor
£ Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301
_ % (954) 712-4600
% February f3 , 2008
|
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F

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL

. CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

Case No.:

Defendanits.

i

DETERMINATION OF PUBLIC INTEREST

P

COMES -éow, BILL McCOLLUM, ATTORNEY GENERAL, STATE OF FLORIDA, and
states: E ' '

¥
i

i




%' WM ILE Ur i TUKNCY WEN FEX ¥oudnizond rey 13 ZUuo ud.3dram  ruudsuug

o Puiisuant to Section 20.11, Florida Statutes (1993), | am the head of the
ok _ _

Department of Upgal Affairs, State of Florida {hersinafter referred to as the

Depanm'EnF}. i
2 In

;
b

is matter, the Department seeks actual damages on behalf of one or
]

more consumerd caused by an act or practice performed in violation of Chapter 501,
i '

Part Il, Florida Sfptutes (2007).

3. I;f%ave reviewed this matter and | have determined that an enforcement
action serves thg*f_ public interest.
s

By s

BiLL McCOLLUM
ATTORNEY GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

T e
=St el A L s

Dated:

sozides
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